
CLACKAMAS C800 RADIO GROUP 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING  
June 21, 2023 at 9:00AM 

 

Online only via Zoom 

https://clackamascounty.zoom.us/j/86442553099 

 
 

1. Call the C800 Board of Directors meeting to Order – Chair Don Johnson  

2. Roll Call of Partners: (19/10) 

a. City of Canby 

b. City of Gladstone 

c. City of Lake Oswego 

d. City of Milwaukie 

e. City of Molalla 

f. City of Oregon City 

g. City of Sandy 

h. City of West Linn 

i. Aurora Fire District 

j. Canby Fire District 

k. Clackamas County Fire District #1 

l. Colton Fire District 

m. Estacada Fire District 

n. Hoodland Fire District 

o. Molalla Fire District 

p. Sandy Fire District 

q. Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue 

r. Clackamas County Sheriff 

s. Clackamas County Health 

3. *Approval of Minutes from May 17, 2023 Board Meeting – Don Johnson 

4. Public Comment – Don Johnson 

5. Communications – Mark Buchholz 

6. *Accept Financial Report for May 2023 – Mark Buchholz 

• Fraud and Banking Changes 

7. Committee Reports 

• Executive Committee – Don Johnson 

• Technical Committee – Ron Polluconi 

• Citizen Accountability – Don Johnson  

8. Old Business 

• Radio System Management - Ron Polluconi 

➢ Remaining site construction update 

➢ Radio Use Issues 

➢ Home button reprograming  

➢ Streaming delay 

➢ 800 Voice Paging 

➢ DVRS update 

9. New Business 

a. Second Vice-Chair:   Replace Michael Carlsen (CCFD#1) who recently retired 

with Assistant Chief Brian Stewart (CCFD#1) 

https://clackamascounty.zoom.us/j/86442553099


b. *Adopt FY24 Budget 

10. Open Agenda 

11. Next Board Meeting:  July 19, 2023 at 9:00am 

12. Adjournment 

 

* indicates action requested 

 



1 
 

CLACKAMAS C800 RADIO GROUP 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
May 17, 2023 at 9:00AM 

Clackamas County Development Services Building Room 119 
150 Beavercreek Rd Oregon City 

 
1. Chair Don Johnson called the meeting to order at 0900 

 
 

        The following were in attendance or on conference line:  
 

City of Canby: Chief Jorge Tro Estacada Fire: Chief Ian O’Connor 

City of Gladstone: Chief John Schmerber Hoodland Fire: Chief Jim Price 

City of Lake Oswego: Chief Don Johnson, 
Tina Burgess 

Molalla Fire: Jim Walker Canby Fire 
representing 

City of Milwaukie: Toby LaFrance Sandy Fire District: Chief Phil Schneider 

City of Molalla: Chief Chris Long TVF&R: Eric Kennedy 

City of Oregon City: Chief Jim Band Clackamas County:  

City of Sandy: Chief Ernie Roberts Clackamas County Sheriff: 

City of West Linn: Chief Peter Mahuna Clackamas County Health: Bill Conway 

Aurora Fire: Chief Josh Williams CCOM: Cheryl Bledsoe, Toni Sexton, Meg 
Neece 

Canby Fire: Jim Walker C800/WCCCA: Ron Polluconi, Mark Buchholz 

Clackamas Fire: DC Brian Stewart  

Colton Fire:  Guests: Russ Ries - Auditor 

 

2. *Approval of Minutes from April 19, 2023 Board Meeting – Don Johnson 

a. Motion was made by Chief Band and seconded by Chief Tro. Motion carries 

3. Public Comment – Don Johnson 

a. none 

4. Communications – Mark Buchholz 

a. None outside of the audit 

5. *Accept Financial Report for April 2023 – Mark Buchholz 

a. No significant expenses since last month. There was a substantial deposit of $230k that 
was received for outstanding payments 

b. Motion was made by Chief Williams and seconded by DC Stewart. Motion carries 

 

 



2 
 

6. Committee Reports 

• Executive Committee – Don Johnson 

• Meet every other Monday and have added Chief Tro, Cheryl Bledsoe and Sue 
Scobert 

• Technical Committee – Ron Polluconi 

• Changed the agenda to focus on specific subject matter 

• 3 major action items; publishing the agenda and the minutes and adding them to 
the upcoming meeting so that there is better tracking. Most issues were having to 
do with talk group hosting 

• Interface that provides location services has been a recent issue 

• There has been some confusion on the quality and type of coverage provided up 
Hwy 224. Current coverage goes past Whale Head. By mid-summer, they will have 
coverage all the way around Forest 24 from 26 to Timothy Lake which will 
complete what they had intended to deliver 

7. Old Business 

• Radio System Management - Ron Polluconi 

➢ Remaining site construction update 

• Security concern at Red Soils storage facility.  Executive Board has approved a 
security system be installed 

• Will include putting shatter resistant film on the windows 

• Also discussing what level of insurance would be appropriate for that space 

• USFS kickoff meeting to re-start construction with a focus on TDH site, as well as 
wrapping up work at Whalehead 

• We can anticipate some damage over the winter 

• Hoping to get a schedule published for the microwave work to finish the path to 
TDH 

• There has been some interest in additional VHF resources, which they began work 
on yesterday. Coverage maps should be available around August 

• Polluconi and PM Bryce Foster have been reviewing every invoice related to 
Whalehead billing as this contract with T3 Inc is where the biggest variance was 
discovered. They should have this done by the end of the week, and will come to 
the executive board for initial review in an upcoming meeting. There are a 
combination of a things that occurred 

o Double billing – through all of the issues, they changed their billing 
methodology which made it difficult to tie everything together 

o Value at looking at other T3 contracts to see if there were any other 
significant deltas 

• No update from Columbia County on purchase of surplus equipment 

➢ DVRS update 

• This is about 90% operational. Will be working with Futurecom/Motorola to 
overcome some issues 



3 
 

• Just don’t have it working with local dispatch and Fire quite yet 

➢ Mark indicated that there will be some repair work this summer at Goat Mtn from the 
damage caused by the CAT plowing snow 

• Would like to install some higher markers and bollards to protect the 
equipment 

➢ Looking to finish up the Todd Hess contract, however we may need to be re-bid the 
project 

8. New Business 

a. Review of the FY22 Audit – Russ Ries 

• Russ presented the audit findings from the FY ending 6/30/2022 as outlined in the 
meeting materials 

• DC Stewart asked Russ to review the annual lease commitment chart and explain 
why some of the future periods are different lengths 

o  Russ explained that the first 5 are singled out and then the rest are in a 
block. DC Stewart clarified that there are several 6 year blocks and then the 
last is 3 years. Russ explained the way the schedule shows is that you look at 
the initial 5 years individually and once you reach 5 years, you look a blocks of 
5 years  

• DC Stewart asked for clarification on the 2032-2039 assuming that it may be 2033-
2038 

o Russ will double check that as it could likely be a typo 

• Eric asked if we have debt service for the bond 

o No, it is through the county 

• Chief Band asked when he had referred to a change that may need to go out, is 
this something that should have been defined as part of the project 

o Russ explained that the state wants entities to come up with what their own 
criteria as to what makes up an alteration that would be ok to use during a 
change order vs. if I is such a dramatic change that it would behoove the 
entity to go out an rebid the project 

o Mark added that the Board could approve a 10-20% overall contract increase, 
by approving a change order. However, in this case the overrun was more 
than double to contract amount, but it occurred slowly over time.  If the 
Board was presented with a contract expenditure to date total when being 
asked to approve a progress invoice, they would have known immediately 
when the original contact amount was exceeded. 

b. Review Audit Finding Plan of Action 

• Mark referred back to pg. 10 of the audit in regards to what should have been 
called out. Mark has worked with Russ on figuring out the fund balance. He noted 
the key items of ‘non-spendable’ of $6,107,000 and unassigned at ($856,000) as of 
year-end 06/30/22 

• Over the course of the project capital money was used to prepay future 
maintenance to both Motorola and Equature. In accounting, prepaid expenses show 
in fund balance until the fiscal year the prepaid expenditure is realized.  So, when 



4 
 

you see ‘non-spendable’ fund balance, this is referring to the money that we have 
already paid Motorola and Equature for future maintenance. This is NOT money we 
actually and it can’t be used for anything else. 

• John worked out an arrangement with PGE to prepay C800 about $2.6M for their 
15-year lease. This revenue should have been put aside and annually realized (made 
available as earned revenue) a portion of the money, however it went directly into 
the checking account and the majority was spent, preventing C800’s checking 
account to be overdrawn. 

• If not for the PGE prepayment, the C800 fund would have been overdrawn by 
$856,000 (the unassigned fund balance amount). 

• Chief Band asked what the “due from other govt’s.” line represents  

o Mark explained these are unpaid partner/member invoices 

c. *Resolution 23-01 to approve Audit Finding Plan of Action 

• The letter proposed in the Board Packet will be sent to the Oregon Secretary of 
State’s Office, Audit Division, addressing the Audit Finding, explaining what happened, 
and identifying changes to ensure it will not happen again. We should have either 
taken action to do a change order, or the contract should have been amended to cover 
the additional expenses 

o The change moving forward, as outlined in the letter, states that we are making 
changes internally to solve the problem 

o For example, when payments are reviewed by the Executive Board, it would 
indicate the invoice is $300k, this contract is $3.6M and we have already spent 
$3.5M. We would instantly know that action needs to be taken 

o Chief Band noted that in 10 or 15 years, the current members will be gone. Is 
there something charter wise to put in place so that this mistake isn’t made in 
the future 

o Eric followed up by noting that he is used to seeing different funds so that we 
could more easily identify any issues and take action to prevent this from 
happening again in the future. He asked if Russ had any recommendations to 
ensure we don’t overspend again 

o Russ stated that this is an internal control structure and at least annually 
organizations need to get together to discuss and review the documented 
internal controls to identify risks. When risks are identified, the documented 
control policies are amended to include situations that arise over time. This 
would be documented so that you have that history for future board members 

o Ron added that WCCCA adopted the county’s rules that come from the state 
making it easier to look up when and what type of action needs to be taken. All 
of this is built in to what was adopted from the county. This keeps them aligned 
with the county as well as the state 

o Mark added that they will change the payment authorization document that is 
submitted to the Executive Board for approval, which will include information 
about total already paid on contract which should prevent this situation from 
occurring again. With this procedure, at least you are having 3 sets of eyes that 
are rotating. Mark also added the 5 year forecast that tracks all encumbrances 
and future revenue. If this would have been in place, the board would have 
noticed bond funds were running out while the invoices were still coming in. 



5 
 

o The 3rd thing that was beneficial was adding financial guidance with Toby 
LaFrance, from Milwaukie, a finance professional. 

• Chief Johnson asked how the board would feel about the Eboard taking a look at the 
county procurement process and the potential adoption. In Sept. we could come back 
to the group and adopt the county procurement process as well as the budget 
reporting process 

o Chief Band noted that it would be good to have a response to what we learned 
as it was a very large amount of money 

• Eric asked that if we go out for a bond in the future, we not group operation and 
capital project expenses together in the same pool. Ron added that any funds 
outside of the operating budget should be tracked and reported 

• DC Stewart asked where we are at in communicating with the Citizen Advisory 
Committee 

o Chief Johnson noted that has not happened for a couple months as they have 
been waiting for a final version of the budget for FY 23-24 

• Eric asked about PGE’s deposit and how it floated us for a while and if this is 
something that may cause additional issues in the future 

o Mark explained that the budget approved for FY24 accounts for these expenses 
and this shouldn’t cause additional problems and is now identified as a 
separate item. 

• Chief Johnson will be reaching out to individuals to collect opinions on control 
processes moving forward to bring back to the board in September 

• Chief Johnson asked the group to take a look at the letter to the state and a.) see if 
we agree with the findings and are there any disagreement with the findings in the 
audit report. b.) is there any question with the proposed action to be taken 

o Eric asked if we have a technical system in place to implement this plan 

o Mark noted that we will implement this next month. There is a summary sheet 
for all of these expenses paid in a month that are presented and approved by 
the Eboard. They will be adding info. Pertaining to the contract info. 

• Motion was made to approve Resolution 2301 by Chief Band and seconded by 
Chief Tro. Motion carries 

 
9. Open Agenda 

a. Chief Johnson discussed the audit going on with T3 with the possibility of some form of 
a refund. We have ARPA and Columbia County moving along as well as the change 
order with Motorola. We will be reaching out to the members in Nov/Dec to pay their 
‘out’ bill. If you are unable to make this payment, please let Chief Johnson know so that 
we can make arrangements 
• Chief Schmerber asked if there would be invoices sent for those agencies that are 

ready to pay. Chief Johnson explained that he would rather wait until the ARPA is 
settled as he would rather not bill and then have to refund 

10. Next Board Meeting: June 21, 2023 at 9:00am 

11. Adjournment 1017  

 
* indicates action requested 



Jul '22 - May 23 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

401-00 ꞏ Beginning Fund Balance 0.00 53,539.00 -53,539.00 0.0%
405-00 ꞏ Members Contracts 73,920.00 76,320.00 -2,400.00 96.9%
410-00 ꞏ Partners Fees 1,215,144.69 1,198,080.00 17,064.69 101.4%
420-00 ꞏ Partners Debt Service Zone Cont 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
421-00 ꞏ Partner Debt Service Microwave 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
430-00 ꞏ Subscriber Radio Payments 11,561.37 1,065,007.00 -1,053,445.63 1.1%
431-00 ꞏ Interest Income 67.40 500.00 -432.60 13.5%
435-00 ꞏ Lease Revenue 73,148.28 92,423.00 -19,274.72 79.1%
440-00 ꞏ Miscellaneous Income 0.01 350,000.00 -349,999.99 0.0%
450-00 ꞏ Intergovernmental-Clackamas Co 0.00 4,757,863.00 -4,757,863.00 0.0%

Total Income 1,373,841.75 7,593,732.00 -6,219,890.25 18.1%

Gross Profit 1,373,841.75 7,593,732.00 -6,219,890.25 18.1%

Expense
605-00 ꞏ Site Rental 231,902.11 263,147.00 -31,244.89 88.1%
610-00 ꞏ Fuel/Generators 8,752.92 25,000.00 -16,247.08 35.0%
615-00 ꞏ HVAC Maintenance 10,251.70 60,000.00 -49,748.30 17.1%
620-00 ꞏ Landscape Maintenance 29,228.31 20,000.00 9,228.31 146.1%
621-00 ꞏ Office Supplies 161.82 900.00 -738.18 18.0%
622-00 ꞏ Bad Debt Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
625-00 ꞏ Generator Maintenance 5,953.53 25,000.00 -19,046.47 23.8%
630-00 ꞏ UPS Maintenance 5,558.98 4,000.00 1,558.98 139.0%
635-00 ꞏ Battery Maintenance 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%
640-00 ꞏ Building Maintenance 27,110.68 10,000.00 17,110.68 271.1%
645-00 ꞏ Insurance 66,218.00 78,000.00 -11,782.00 84.9%

650-00 ꞏ Utilities 105,335.59 105,000.00 335.59 100.3%
655-00 ꞏ Consultant Services 5,200.00 35,000.00 -29,800.00 14.9%
657-00 ꞏ Regional Radio Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
660-00 ꞏ WCCCA System Fees 963,181.00 963,181.00 0.00 100.0%
665-00 ꞏ Radio Maintenance Fees 11,819.61 35,000.00 -23,180.39 33.8%

667-00 ꞏ Radio Replacement Project 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
668-00 ꞏ Fire Sta Alerting Oper. Expense 0.00 95,000.00 -95,000.00 0.0%
670-00 ꞏ Legal Services 3,575.00 2,000.00 1,575.00 178.8%
675-00 ꞏ Financial Services 17,367.00 7,800.00 9,567.00 222.7%
680-00 ꞏ Audit Fees 10,085.00 7,500.00 2,585.00 134.5%
685-00 ꞏ Miscellaneous Expenses 24,201.53 5,000.00 19,201.53 484.0%
686-00 ꞏ Meeting Expenses 167.50 1,000.00 -832.50 16.8%
703-00 ꞏ Capital Outlay

703-01 ꞏ Buildings & Land Improvement
703-011 ꞏ Land Improvement 123,509.51
703-012 ꞏ Building 46,279.52
703-013 ꞏ Tower 15,803.52
703-014 ꞏ Generator 4,100.00

Total 703-01 ꞏ Buildings & Land Improvement 189,692.55

703-02 ꞏ Radio Backbone
703-021 ꞏ Simulcast / Master Site 64,267.06
703-022 ꞏ Subscriber Radios 4,891.98
703-023 ꞏ Console Equipment 10,285.00
703-024 ꞏ Paging 21,233.60

Total 703-02 ꞏ Radio Backbone 100,677.64

703-03 ꞏ Equipment
703-031 ꞏ Security System 4,281.31
703-032 ꞏ DC Power 19,439.38
703-034 ꞏ Microwave 7,565.50
703-035 ꞏ Test Equipment 14,835.68

Total 703-03 ꞏ Equipment 46,121.87

703-00 ꞏ Capital Outlay - Other 0.00 5,822,870.00 -5,822,870.00 0.0%

Total 703-00 ꞏ Capital Outlay 336,492.06 5,822,870.00 -5,486,377.94 5.8%

999-00 ꞏ Unappropriated End Fund Bal 0.00 23,333.00 -23,333.00 0.0%

Total Expense 1,862,562.34 7,593,731.00 -5,731,168.66 24.5%

Net Ordinary Income -488,720.59 1.00 -488,721.59 -48,872,059.0%

Net Income -488,720.59 1.00 -488,721.59 -48,872,059.0%

4:04 PM Clackamas 800 Radio Group

06/13/23 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis July 2022 through May 2023

Page 1

These financial statements omit all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the Unied States of America. Management has not recorded  
current capital assets, accumulated depreciation, depreciation expense, certain receivables and leases under GASB-87, which is a known departure from accounting 
principles generally accepted in the Unied States of America. In addition, these statements omit the statement of cash flows, which is a known departure from  
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review, or compilation 
engagement, and therefore no assurance is provided.  



Type Date Num Name Memo Class Amount Balance

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

431-00 ꞏ Interest Income
Deposit 05/31/2023 Interest 4.88 4.88

Total 431-00 ꞏ Interest Income 4.88 4.88

435-00 ꞏ Lease Revenue
Deposit 05/24/2023 FBI Deposit 130.00 130.00
Deposit 05/24/2023 FBI Deposit 324.00 454.00
Deposit 05/24/2023 FBI Deposit 1,106.83 1,560.83

Total 435-00 ꞏ Lease Revenue 1,560.83 1,560.83

Total Income 1,565.71 1,565.71

Gross Profit 1,565.71 1,565.71

Expense
605-00 ꞏ Site Rental

General Journal 05/01/2023 AJE 39 To record pre-paid May rent as rent expense in the correct period 1,395.00 1,395.00

Total 605-00 ꞏ Site Rental 1,395.00 1,395.00

610-00 ꞏ Fuel/Generators
Bill 05/31/2023 2023-56148 Grid Connect Inc. Annual licensing for liquid propane monitoring 05/30/23 to 05/30/24 44.08 44.08

Total 610-00 ꞏ Fuel/Generators 44.08 44.08

640-00 ꞏ Building Maintenance
Bill 05/29/2023 INV02813 WCCCA Roof patching 235.14 235.14

Total 640-00 ꞏ Building Maintenance 235.14 235.14

650-00 ꞏ Utilities
Check 05/02/2023 EFT PGE 285.25 285.25
Check 05/02/2023 EFT PGE 360.14 645.39
Check 05/02/2023 EFT PGE 541.14 1,186.53
Check 05/03/2023 EFT PGE 32.81 1,219.34
Check 05/04/2023 EFT PGE 331.41 1,550.75
Check 05/05/2023 EFT PGE 309.64 1,860.39
Check 05/05/2023 EFT PGE 398.31 2,258.70
Check 05/08/2023 EFT PGE 402.78 2,661.48
Check 05/09/2023 EFT PGE 224.30 2,885.78
Check 05/11/2023 EFT PGE 291.33 3,177.11
Check 05/15/2023 EFT Comcast 178.30 3,355.41
Check 05/16/2023 EFT NW Natural 16.60 3,372.01
Check 05/16/2023 EFT PGE 416.07 3,788.08
Check 05/17/2023 EFT PGE 153.57 3,941.65
Check 05/17/2023 EFT PGE 316.56 4,258.21
Check 05/17/2023 EFT PGE 316.80 4,575.01
Check 05/17/2023 EFT PGE 320.13 4,895.14
Check 05/17/2023 EFT PGE 403.66 5,298.80
Check 05/17/2023 EFT PGE 666.65 5,965.45
Check 05/18/2023 EFT PGE 302.91 6,268.36
Check 05/18/2023 EFT PGE 351.28 6,619.64
Check 05/19/2023 EFT PGE 740.68 7,360.32
Check 05/23/2023 EFT PGE 346.03 7,706.35
Check 05/23/2023 EFT PGE 460.59 8,166.94
Check 05/26/2023 EFT Canby Utility 190236 163.78 8,330.72

Total 650-00 ꞏ Utilities 8,330.72 8,330.72

655-00 ꞏ Consultant Services
Bill 05/31/2023 CIWD-921 Consistent Image Web ... Monthly web maintenance - May 2023 100.00 100.00

Total 655-00 ꞏ Consultant Services 100.00 100.00

665-00 ꞏ Radio Maintenance Fees
Bill 05/01/2023 #INV736626 Day Wireless Systems I... Materials 877.50 877.50
Bill 05/01/2023 #INV736626 Day Wireless Systems I... Labor 2,625.00 3,502.50
Bill 05/19/2023 90337395 Zetron Flat rate repair 856.63 4,359.13

Total 665-00 ꞏ Radio Maintenance Fees 4,359.13 4,359.13

675-00 ꞏ Financial Services
Check 05/31/2023 Service Charge 20.00 20.00
Bill 05/31/2023 164505 Talbot, Korvola & Warwi... May bookkeeping 550.00 570.00
Bill 05/31/2023 164505 Talbot, Korvola & Warwi... Support for FY22 audit 2,500.00 3,070.00

Total 675-00 ꞏ Financial Services 3,070.00 3,070.00

680-00 ꞏ Audit Fees
Bill 05/01/2023 INV# 46105 Jarrard, Seibert, Pollard ... FY22 audit work 3,285.00 3,285.00
Bill 05/04/2023 FY22 Filing Fee Secretary of State Audit... Filing fee for FY22 Annual Audit 250.00 3,535.00

Total 680-00 ꞏ Audit Fees 3,535.00 3,535.00

685-00 ꞏ Miscellaneous Expenses
General Journal 05/11/2023 AJE 44 FRAUD - Bank account EFT Fraud 700.82 700.82
General Journal 05/11/2023 AJE 45 FRAUD - Bank account EFT Fraud 2,200.00 2,900.82
General Journal 05/12/2023 AJE 46 FRAUD - Bank account EFT Fraud 2,869.46 5,770.28
General Journal 05/15/2023 AJE 47 FRAUD - Bank account EFT Fraud 500.00 6,270.28
General Journal 05/15/2023 AJE 48 FRAUD - Bank account EFT Fraud 1,000.00 7,270.28
General Journal 05/15/2023 AJE 49 FRAUD - Bank account EFT Fraud 2,500.00 9,770.28
General Journal 05/22/2023 AJE 50 FRAUD - Bank account EFT Fraud 301.34 10,071.62
General Journal 05/22/2023 AJE 51 FRAUD - Bank account EFT Fraud 899.00 10,970.62
General Journal 05/22/2023 AJE 52 FRAUD - Bank account EFT Fraud 1,037.22 12,007.84
General Journal 05/24/2023 AJE 53 FRAUD - Bank account EFT Fraud 849.00 12,856.84
General Journal 05/26/2023 AJE 54 FRAUD - Bank account EFT Fraud 955.51 13,812.35

Total 685-00 ꞏ Miscellaneous Expenses 13,812.35 13,812.35

703-00 ꞏ Capital Outlay
703-01 ꞏ Buildings & Land Improvement

703-011 ꞏ Land Improvement
Bill 05/16/2023 C800-2023-03 Bryce Foster Construction Project Support 22 Whale Head 2,200.00 2,200.00
Bill 05/16/2023 C800-2023-03 Bryce Foster Mileage 22 Whale Head 22.50 2,222.50
Bill 05/31/2023 10463 Securasite LLC Hourly work Oct 2022 through May 2023 13 Tom Dick and ... 1,656.25 3,878.75
Bill 05/31/2023 10464 Securasite LLC Hourly work Feb. 2023 13 Tom Dick and ... 87.50 3,966.25

Total 703-011 ꞏ Land Improvement 3,966.25 3,966.25

Total 703-01 ꞏ Buildings & Land Improvement 3,966.25 3,966.25

4:06 PM Clackamas 800 Radio Group

06/13/23 Profit & Loss Detail

Accrual Basis May 2023

Page 1

These financial statements omit all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the Unied States of America. Management has not recorded  
current capital assets, accumulated depreciation, depreciation expense, certain receivables and leases under GASB-87, which is a known departure from accounting 
principles generally accepted in the Unied States of America. In addition, these statements omit the statement of cash flows, which is a known departure from  
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review, or compilation 
engagement, and therefore no assurance is provided.  



Type Date Num Name Memo Class Amount Balance

703-02 ꞏ Radio Backbone
703-021 ꞏ Simulcast / Master Site

Bill 05/01/2023 #INV747180 Day Wireless Systems I... Decommissioned 10 antennas and lines 23 Goat Mountain 7,755.00 7,755.00

Total 703-021 ꞏ Simulcast / Master Site 7,755.00 7,755.00

Total 703-02 ꞏ Radio Backbone 7,755.00 7,755.00

703-03 ꞏ Equipment
703-035 ꞏ Test Equipment

Bill 05/02/2023 INV# i9710 Alternative Power Syste... Site upgrades and installation verifications 40 All 14,763.68 14,763.68

Total 703-035 ꞏ Test Equipment 14,763.68 14,763.68

Total 703-03 ꞏ Equipment 14,763.68 14,763.68

Total 703-00 ꞏ Capital Outlay 26,484.93 26,484.93

Total Expense 61,366.35 61,366.35

Net Ordinary Income -59,800.64 -59,800.64

Net Income -59,800.64 -59,800.64

4:06 PM Clackamas 800 Radio Group

06/13/23 Profit & Loss Detail

Accrual Basis May 2023

Page 2

These financial statements omit all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the Unied States of America. Management has not recorded  
current capital assets, accumulated depreciation, depreciation expense, certain receivables and leases under GASB-87, which is a known departure from accounting 
principles generally accepted in the Unied States of America. In addition, these statements omit the statement of cash flows, which is a known departure from  
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review, or compilation 
engagement, and therefore no assurance is provided.  



May 31, 23

Debit Credit

115-00 ꞏ Cash/Checking Account 701,553.82
11000 ꞏ Accounts Receivable 80,771.22
120-00 ꞏ Member Fees Receivable 0.00
12000 ꞏ Undeposited Funds 0.00
150-00 ꞏ Prepaid Expenses 1,879.92
160-00 ꞏ Buildings and Towers 51,236,022.15
165-00 ꞏ Radio Backbone 15,573,723.80
166-00 ꞏ Equipment 8,719,412.00
167-00 ꞏ Work In Progress 0.00
169-00 ꞏ CIP 0.00
175-00 ꞏ Accumulated Depreciation 13,650,513.50
190-00 ꞏ Leased Assets 5,041,399.00
195-00 ꞏ Accumulated Amortization 228,252.00
180-00 ꞏ Deferred O/F-P25 Maintenance 6,081,616.00
201-00 ꞏ Accounts Payable 38,043.20
201-02 ꞏ Other Accounts Payable 0.00
202-00 ꞏ Partner Prepayment 0.00
210-00 ꞏ Reimb due Clackamas County 0.00
250-00 ꞏ N/P - CCB (Microwave) 0.00
290-00 ꞏ Operating Lease < 1 year 138,523.00
280-00 ꞏ Prepaid Lease Income 2,065,694.44
295-00 ꞏ Operating Lease > 1 year 4,772,510.00
300-00 ꞏ Fund Balance 0.00
300-01 ꞏ GLTDAG 0.00
310-00 ꞏ Investment in Fixed Assets 53,862,036.66
320-00 ꞏ Retained Earnings, Prior 13,169,525.70
405-00 ꞏ Members Contracts 73,920.00
410-00 ꞏ Partners Fees 1,215,144.69
430-00 ꞏ Subscriber Radio Payments 11,561.37
431-00 ꞏ Interest Income 67.40
435-00 ꞏ Lease Revenue 73,148.28
440-00 ꞏ Miscellaneous Income 0.01
605-00 ꞏ Site Rental 231,902.11
610-00 ꞏ Fuel/Generators 8,752.92
615-00 ꞏ HVAC Maintenance 10,251.70
620-00 ꞏ Landscape Maintenance 29,228.31
621-00 ꞏ Office Supplies 161.82
625-00 ꞏ Generator Maintenance 5,953.53
630-00 ꞏ UPS Maintenance 5,558.98
640-00 ꞏ Building Maintenance 27,110.68
645-00 ꞏ Insurance 66,218.00
650-00 ꞏ Utilities 105,335.59
655-00 ꞏ Consultant Services 5,200.00
660-00 ꞏ WCCCA System Fees 963,181.00
665-00 ꞏ Radio Maintenance Fees 11,819.61
670-00 ꞏ Legal Services 3,575.00
675-00 ꞏ Financial Services 17,367.00
680-00 ꞏ Audit Fees 10,085.00
685-00 ꞏ Miscellaneous Expenses 24,201.53
686-00 ꞏ Meeting Expenses 167.50
703-011 ꞏ Land Improvement 123,509.51
703-012 ꞏ Building 46,279.52
703-013 ꞏ Tower 15,803.52
703-014 ꞏ Generator 4,100.00
703-021 ꞏ Simulcast / Master Site 64,267.06
703-022 ꞏ Subscriber Radios 4,891.98
703-023 ꞏ Console Equipment 10,285.00
703-024 ꞏ Paging 21,233.60
703-031 ꞏ Security System 4,281.31
703-032 ꞏ DC Power 19,439.38
703-034 ꞏ Microwave 7,565.50
703-035 ꞏ Test Equipment 14,835.68

TOTAL 89,298,940.25 89,298,940.25

4:07 PM Clackamas 800 Radio Group

06/13/23 Trial Balance
Accrual Basis As of May 31, 2023

Page 1

These financial statements omit all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the Unied States of America. Management has not recorded  
current capital assets, accumulated depreciation, depreciation expense, certain receivables and leases under GASB-87, which is a known departure from accounting 
principles generally accepted in the Unied States of America. In addition, these statements omit the statement of cash flows, which is a known departure from  
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review, or compilation 
engagement, and therefore no assurance is provided.  



May 31, 23

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
115-00 ꞏ Cash/Checking Account 701,553.82

Total Checking/Savings 701,553.82

Accounts Receivable
11000 ꞏ Accounts Receivable 80,771.22

Total Accounts Receivable 80,771.22

Other Current Assets
150-00 ꞏ Prepaid Expenses 1,879.92

Total Other Current Assets 1,879.92

Total Current Assets 784,204.96

Fixed Assets
160-00 ꞏ Buildings and Towers 51,236,022.15
165-00 ꞏ Radio Backbone 15,573,723.80
166-00 ꞏ Equipment 8,719,412.00
175-00 ꞏ Accumulated Depreciation -13,650,513.50
190-00 ꞏ Leased Assets

195-00 ꞏ Accumulated Amortization -228,252.00
190-00 ꞏ Leased Assets - Other 5,041,399.00

Total 190-00 ꞏ Leased Assets 4,813,147.00

Total Fixed Assets 66,691,791.45

Other Assets
180-00 ꞏ Deferred O/F-P25 Maintenance 6,081,616.00

Total Other Assets 6,081,616.00

TOTAL ASSETS 73,557,612.41

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

201-00 ꞏ Accounts Payable 38,043.20

Total Accounts Payable 38,043.20

Other Current Liabilities
290-00 ꞏ Operating Lease < 1 year 138,523.00

Total Other Current Liabilities 138,523.00

Total Current Liabilities 176,566.20

Long Term Liabilities
280-00 ꞏ Prepaid Lease Income 2,065,694.44
295-00 ꞏ Operating Lease > 1 year 4,772,510.00

Total Long Term Liabilities 6,838,204.44

Total Liabilities 7,014,770.64

Equity
310-00 ꞏ Investment in Fixed Assets 53,862,036.66
320-00 ꞏ Retained Earnings, Prior 13,169,525.70
Net Income -488,720.59

Total Equity 66,542,841.77

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 73,557,612.41

4:09 PM Clackamas 800 Radio Group

06/13/23 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of May 31, 2023

Page 1

These financial statements omit all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the Unied States of America. Management has not recorded  
current capital assets, accumulated depreciation, depreciation expense, certain receivables and leases under GASB-87, which is a known departure from accounting 
principles generally accepted in the Unied States of America. In addition, these statements omit the statement of cash flows, which is a known departure from  
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review, or compilation 
engagement, and therefore no assurance is provided.  



Type Date Num Name Due Date Aging Open Balance

Current
Total Current

1 - 30
Total 1 - 30

31 - 60
Total 31 - 60

61 - 90
Total 61 - 90

> 90
Invoice 05/19/2022 2019-2054 Lake Oswego Lake Corporation 05/19/2022 377 7,497.36
Credit Memo 05/19/2022 2019-2064 Wilsonville - PW / Transit 05/19/2022 377 -2,727.77
Credit Memo 05/27/2022 2019-2061 Clackamas County Community College 05/25/2022 371 -675.18
Invoice 06/01/2022 2019-2069 Colton Fire 06/01/2022 364 18,348.55
Credit Memo 06/01/2022 2019-2072 Molalla RFPD 06/01/2022 364 -50,861.31
Invoice 06/08/2022 2019-2039 Hoodland Fire District 06/08/2022 357 121,671.66
Invoice 07/01/2022 22-106 Colton Fire 07/01/2022 334 20,640.00
Payment 07/01/2022 120213592 KATU -2.09
Credit Memo 12/12/2022 22-155 Molalla RFPD 12/12/2022 170 -33,120.00

Total > 90 80,771.22

TOTAL 80,771.22

4:11 PM Clackamas 800 Radio Group
06/13/23 A/R Aging Detail

As of May 31, 2023

Page 1

These financial statements omit all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the Unied States of America. Management has not recorded  
current capital assets, accumulated depreciation, depreciation expense, certain receivables and leases under GASB-87, which is a known departure from accounting 
principles generally accepted in the Unied States of America. In addition, these statements omit the statement of cash flows, which is a known departure from  
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review, or compilation 
engagement, and therefore no assurance is provided.  



Clackamas 800 Radio Group

Fiscal Year 2023-24 (FY24)  Approved Budget Update: 06/21/23

Estimated Approved Approved

Year End by Budget by Governing Pct

Account Actual Audited Budget FY23 Proposed Committee Board Change
Accnt # Description FY21 FY22 FY23 06/21/23 FY24 03/20/23 from FY23

Revenue

401-00 Beginning Fund Balance 7,296,037 0 53,539 0 0 573,162 0 -100.0%

401-01 Begin Fund Balance - Prepaid 6,081,615 0 6,107,631 6,107,631 6,107,631

401-02 Begin Fund Balance - Available 1,717,033 0 (856,825) (1,345,525) (1,345,525)

405-00 Member Contracts 66,220 76,320 76,320 73,920 226,914 226,914 226,914 197.3%

410-00 Partner Fees 1,068,893 1,270,525 1,198,080 1,215,145 1,476,864 1,476,864 1,476,864 23.3%

420-00 Partner Debt Service Zone Con 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

421-00 Partner Dept Service Microwave 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

430-00 Subscriber Radio Payments 109,672 990,599 1,065,007 11,561 0 0 0 -100.0%

431-00 Interest Income 149 146 500 67 100 100 100 -80.0%

435-00 Lease Income 38,731 249,344 92,423 73,148 89,177 89,177 89,177 -3.5%

440-00 Miscellaneous Income 251,453 228,665 350,000 0 2,900,000 2,900,000 2,900,000 728.6%

450-00 Bond Proceeds / Capital Solution 7,622,590 6,164,335 4,757,863 0 0 0 0 -100.0%

455-00 Bond Interest Income 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

Additional Revenue 0 0 0 0 1,140,000 1,140,000 1,140,000 0.0%

Total Resources 16,453,745 16,778,582 7,593,732 6,624,648 10,595,160 6,406,217 10,595,160 39.5%

Expense
    Personnel

Salary 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Benefits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

Subtotal Personnel 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

    Materials and Services

605-00 Site Rental 233,262 268,009 263,147 207,282 311,300 311,300 311,300 18.3%

610-00 Fuel (for generators) 19,690 29,285 25,000 13,753 25,000 25,000 25,000 0.0%

615-00 HVAC Maintenance 21,211 56,345 60,000 10,252 50,000 50,000 50,000 -16.7%

620-00 Landscape Maintenance 40,810 3,700 20,000 29,228 20,000 20,000 20,000 0.0%

621-00 Office Supplies 0 0 900 162 900 900 900 0.0%

622-00 Bad Debt Expense 19,350 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

625-00 Generator Maintenance 9,958 9,905 25,000 15,954 25,000 25,000 25,000 0.0%

Page 1



Clackamas 800 Radio Group

Fiscal Year 2023-24 (FY24)  Approved Budget Update: 06/21/23

Estimated Approved Approved

Year End by Budget by Governing Pct

Account Actual Audited Budget FY23 Proposed Committee Board Change
Accnt # Description FY21 FY22 FY23 06/21/23 FY24 03/20/23 from FY23

630-00 UPS Maintenance 3,246 0 4,000 5,559 4,000 4,000 4,000 0.0%

635-00 Battery Maintenance 0 3,146 5,000 0 5,000 5,000 5,000 0.0%

640-00 Building Maintenance 0 4,598 10,000 27,111 10,000 10,000 10,000 0.0%

645-00 Insurance 56,585 70,360 78,000 66,218 70,000 70,000 70,000 -10.3%

650-00 Utilities 83,016 107,234 105,000 113,836 105,000 105,000 105,000 0.0%

655-00 Consultant Services 53,947 51,521 35,000 5,300 35,000 35,000 35,000 0.0%

657-00 Regional Radio 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

660-00 WCCCA Contract Services 758,217 888,651 963,181 963,181 1,080,162 1,080,162 1,080,162 12.1%

665-00 Radio Maintenance Fees 122,444 39,853 35,000 11,820 35,000 35,000 35,000 0.0%

667-00 Radio Replacement Proj 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

668-00 Fire Sta Alerting Maintenance 0 86,485 95,000 0 92,500 92,500 92,500 -2.6%

670-00 Legal Services 1,300 7,595 2,000 3,575 3,000 3,000 3,000 50.0%

675-00 Financial Services 7,525 9,021 7,800 18,367 9,600 9,600 9,600 23.1%

680-00 Audit Fees 6,920 6,875 7,500 10,085 7,500 7,500 7,500 0.0%

683-00 Capital Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

685-00 Miscellaneous Expense 709 590 5,000 24,202 5,000 5,000 5,000 0.0%

686-00 Meeting Expense / Public notice 100 40 1,000 168 1,000 1,000 1,000 0.0%

Subtotal Material and Services 1,438,290 1,643,215 1,747,528 1,526,050 1,894,962 1,894,962 1,894,962 8.4%

683-00 Capital Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
703-00 Capital Outlay 7,715,484 9,884,562 5,822,870 336,492 4,422,533 4,422,533 4,422,533 -24.0%
795-00 Debt Service 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

Additional Expense Proposal(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
800-00 Operating Contingency 0 0 0 0 50,000 50,000 50,000 0.0%

Ending Fund Balance 7,299,971 5,250,805 23,334 4,762,106 4,227,666 38,722 4,227,666 18018.0%

Total Expense 16,453,745 16,778,582 7,593,732 6,624,648 10,595,160 6,406,217 10,595,160 39.5%

Page 2



 

 

CLACKAMAS                   5900 Pinefarm Court 

800 RADIO                              Hillsboro, OR  97124 

GROUP          (503) 690-4911  

 
 

 

RESOLUTION 23-02 
 

RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 BUDGET 
 

WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget has been reviewed by the Agency’s Budget 

Committee and recommended to the Board of Directors, and 
 

WHEREAS, a Public Hearing on the Budget Committee’s recommended budget was held before the 

Board of Directors on April 19, 2023, and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors approved the recommended budget on April 19, 2023 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Clackamas 800 Radio Group Board of Directors 

hereby adopt the following budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024 in the total amount of 

$6,317,495 in expenditure authority for the Agency’s General Fund and authorizes the appropriates 

as follows: 

 

  General Fund 

   Personal Services       0 

   Material & Services    1,894,962 

   Capital Outlay     4,422,533 

   Debt Service        0 

   Contingency          50,000 

  Total Appropriations     6,367,495 

   Unappr. Ending Fund Balance   4,227,665 

 

    Total Budget           $ 10,595,160 

 

 

 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 21st day of June, 2023. 

 

 
                                                                  

Chair Johnson, Board of Directors 

 
 


	Agenda 06-21-23
	C800 Minutes 05-17-23
	C800 Financial Reports 05-31-23
	C800 FY24 Approved Budget
	Resolution 23-02 Adopt FY24 Budget



